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TOWN OF WARREN

TREASURER / TAX COLLECTOR’S OFFICE

514 Main Street » Warren, Rl 02885

401-245-7341
Fax 401-245-0543

Cheryl L. Silva
Treasurer / Tax Collector

January 23, 2010

To the Honorable Members of the Town Council
Town of Warren, Rhode Island

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months
of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of Warren
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the
Town of Warren. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the Town of Warren has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the Town of Warren’s financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their
benefits, the Town of Warren's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will
be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town of Warren's financial statements have been audited by Braver, PC, a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Town of Warren for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit invoived
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the Town of Warren's financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be
read in conjunction with it. The Town of Warren's MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The Town of Warren was founded in 1746 and incorporated in 1747. The town is located
in the eastern part of the state. The Town of Warren currently occupies a land area of 8.656
square miles and serves a population of 11,360. The Town of Warren is empowered to levy a
property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries.

The Town of Warren has operated under the council-manager form of government since
1995. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of five
members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances,
adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring both the government’'s manager and
attorney. The government’s manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances
of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for
appointing the heads of the various departments. The council is elected on a partisan basis and
members serve two-year terms.

The Town of Warren provides a full range of services, including police and fire
protection; the construction and maintenance of streets and other infrastructure; and
recreational activities and cultural events.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town of Warren'’s financial planning
and control. All departments of the Town of Warren are required to submit requests for
appropriation to the Town Manager. The manager uses these requests as the starting point for
developing a proposed budget. The manager then presents this proposed budget to the council
for review. The council is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt
a final budget. The appropriated budget is prepared by function, and department. Budget-to-
actual comparisons are provided in this report for the general fund, the only governmental fund
for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when
it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Town
of Warren operates.

Local economy. The Town of Warren is the twenty-sixth largest municipality in the State of
Rhode Island. The Town, situated on beautiful Mount Hope Bay, was once a colonial-era
industrial center built on privateering and shipbuilding. Today the community offers a wide
variety of employment choices, particularly in the manufacturing, retail trade and services
sectors.



Approximately 28% of the Town's land area is comprised of residential development,
primarily single family dwellings. About 58% of the 1,138 acres of residential development are of
medium-high density (between 4 to 7.9 dwellings per acre). Most of the remaining acreage is
either high density (greater than 8 dwellings per acre) or medium density (1 to 3.9) dwelling units
per acre), with a very small percentage of low and medium-low density developments in outlying
areas.

Commercial development makes up approximately four percent of the land in Warren.
This falls into three basic types: traditional Main Street retail stores, related commercial uses
found on Market Street and Child Street, and strip commercial plazas on Metacom Avenue.
Because of its linear location, this relatively minor land use disproportionately dominates one’s
image of Warren.

Industrial activity occurs in three main conditions: mill and related multi-level
manufacturing, assembling or warehousing, with single story service uses, assembly plants and
marine activities.

Long-term financial planning. The Town Council has continued its approval for funding of capital
investments, and for the maintenance of existing Town facilities. The fiscal year 2009-10 budget
includes appropriations for the following projects: DPW equipment and vehicle replacement,
Police Department equipment and vehicle additions, Fire Department equipment and gear
purchases, Waste Water equipment and infrastructure repair as well as replacing decking at the
Commercial Docks.

Cash management policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in
money market funds and short term certificates. Investment income includes appreciation in the
fair value of investments and was less than 100 basis points during FY2009. The current
economic and credit environment would not permit long term investments in non-liquid assets;
thus interest and dividend earnings of less than 1% were the norm.

Risk management. The Town of Warren is exposed to a variety of potential losses and has
established a risk management strategy that attempts to minimize the losses and the carrying
cost of insurance. The primary technique used for risk financing is the purchase of insurance
coverage from commercial insurers. The expected portion of uninsured losses is not expected
to be significant when considered in relation to the overall financial position of the Town.

Pension and other postemployment benefits. All full-time employees of the Town are provided
pension benefits through the Town’'s participation in the State of Rhode Island Municipal
Employees Retirement System (MERS), which is an agent multiple-employer Public Employee
Retirement System. Each year, an independent actuary is engaged to calculate the annual
contribution that the Town must make to the MERS to ensure that the plan will be able to fully
meet its obligations to retired employees. As a matter of policy, the Town fully funds each year’s
annual required contribution as determined by the actuary. As a result of the funding policy, the
Town has succeeded as of June 30, 2009 in funding 100% of the total current-year actuarially
determined contribution requirements for all employees covered by the pension plan.



The Town of Warren also provides postretirement health and dental care benefits for
certain retirees and their dependents. As of the end of the current fiscal year, there were three
retired employees receiving these benefits, which are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. GAAP
do not currently require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection
with an employer’s obligation to provide these benefits.

Additional information on the Town of Warren's pension arrangements and
postemployment benefits can be found in Notes 5 and 12 to the financial statements.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of
Warren for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009. This was the twelfth consecutive year that the government has received this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we
are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the finance department. | would also like to express my
appreciation to all members of the various other Town department's who assisted and
contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the Town Manager and
the Town Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the Town of Warren and its finances.

Respectfully submitted,

Chsfih

Cheryl L Silva
Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Town Council
Town of Warren, Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activity, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Warren, Rhode Island as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Town'’s
basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Town of Warren, Rhode Isiand's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Warren, Rhode Island as of June 30, 2009, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
23, 2010 on our consideration of the Town of Warren, Rhode Island’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the resuits of our audit.

Boston

I I Igl Newton
woRtowE Two Charles Street, Providence, Rl 02904 T401421.2710 F401.2745230 www.thebravergroup.com Providence



The Management's Discussion and Analysis on Pages 3 through 9 and the Required
Supplementary Information on pages 47 thru 49 are not a required part of the basic financial statements
but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Warren, Rhode Island’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section
and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Boarer, P&

Providence, Rhode Island
January 23, 2010



Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Warren, we offer readers of the Town of Warren's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Warren
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal, which can be found on pages i - iv of this report.

Financial Highlights

* The assets of the Town of Warren exceeded its liabilities as of June 30, 2009, by $21,029,359
(net assets). Of this amount, $3,386,652 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

* The Town of Warren's total net assets decreased by $1,745,794 for the current fiscal year.

* As of June 30, 2009, the Town of Warren's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $4,814,634, a decrease of $2,725,594 in comparison with the prior year.

* As of June 30, 2009, the unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $3,882,113, or
approximately 16 percent of total general fund expenditures. However, $2,451,711 of this
unreserved fund balance was appropriated to meet 2009-10 general fund capital expenditures.

* The Town of Warren's total debt of its governmental activities decreased by $1,510,899 (11%)
during 2009. The Town paid down $1,366,439 on existing bond issues.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Warren's
basic financial statements. These basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The govemment-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of Warren's finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town of Warren's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Town of Warren is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only

result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation and sick leave).



Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of Warren
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of
the Town of Warren include general government, public safety, public works, parks and
recreation. The business-type activities of the Town of Warren include the jointly-managed
transfer station operation.

The government-wide financial statements include only the activities of the Town of Warren.
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10 and 11 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town
of Warren, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town of
Warren can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spend-able resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide
a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The Town of Warren maintains 46 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund which is
considered a major fund. Data from the remaining 45 governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements later in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12, 13 and 14 of this
report.

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town of Warren uses
enterprise funds to account for its transfer station operations.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 15, 16 and 17 of this
report.



Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town
of Warren's programs. The fiduciary funds maintained by the Town of Warren include several
private-purpose trusts and agency funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 18 and 19 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found beginning on page 20 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,

required supplementary information presents a budgetary comparison schedule for the
General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds
and other information related to the individual funds is presented immediately following the
required supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's

financial position. In the case of the Town of Warren, assets exceeded liabilities by $21,029,359
at the close of Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2009.

Governmental Business-type Percentage

Activities Activities Total Change

2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008-09
Current and other assets $ 8318911 $ 5797394 $ 28,339 $ (46,516) $ 8,347,250 $ 5,750,878 -31.10%
Capital assets 28,852,718 28,664,159 166,264 179,788 29,018,982 28,843,947 -0.60%
Total assets 37,171,629 34,461,553 194,603 133,272 37,366,232 34,594,825 -7.42%
Long-term debt 12,187,592 11,188,290 - 6,859 12,187,592 11,195,149 -8.14%
Other liabilities 2,384,101 2,353,322 21,485 16,995 2,405,586 2,370,317 -1.47%
Total liabilities 14,571,693 13,541,612 21,485 23,854 14,593,178 13,565,466 -7.04%

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets 15,206,598 17,460,467 180,073 109,418 15,386,671 17,569,885 14.19%
Restricted 402,606 72,822 - - 402,606 72,822 -81.91%
Unrestricted : 6,990,732 3,386,652 (6,955) - 6,983,777 3,386,652 -51.51%
Total net assets $ 22,599,936 $ 20,919941 $ 173,118 $ 109,418 $ 22,773,054 $ 21,029,359 -7.66%

The general capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) of the
governmental activities of the Town of Warren less outstanding debt equal $17,460,467. A

portion of the outstanding debt of the governmental activities was incurred for the installation of
infrastructure.

With the historical infrastructure costs included, the governmental activities have total net
assets of $20,919,941. Included within the total net assets are capital assets of $17,460,467
and restricted net assets of $72,822 as of June 30, 2009, leaving an unrestricted balance of



Even though these net assets are available for future spending, the investment in capital assets
is reported net of related debt. Resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Additional portions of the Town of Warren’s net assets are also subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets or $3,386,652 may
be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens or creditors.

The total net assets of the transfer station operation, reported as a business type activity,
decreased by $63,700. The investment in capital assets net of related debt decreased 40% or
$70,655.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the Town of Warren's net assets
by $1,682,094 accounting for virtually all of the total reduction in the net assets of the Town of
Warren. Much of this decrease in net assets was attributable to capital projects during the fiscal
year.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the Town of Warren's net assets
by $63,700. The increase in unrestricted net assets was primarily due to an increase in
operating expenses.

Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008-2009
Revenues

Program revenues-
Charges for services $ 409,709 $ 338730 $ 192600 $ 130426 $ 602,309 $ 469,156 -22.11%
Grants 572,802 361,618 572,802 361,618 -36.87%

General revenues-
Property taxes 20,003,516 20,883,330 20,003,516 20,883,330 4.40%
Intergovernmental 268,087 292,756 268,087 292,756 9.20%
Licenses, fees, permits and fines 876,667 830,642 876,667 830,642 -5.25%
Investment earnings 335,082 292,249 335,082 292,249 -12.78%
Miscellaneous 121,355 128,242 121,355 128,242 5.68%
Transfers in/(out) (500,000) (500,000) 100.00%

Total revenues 22,587,218 22,627,567 192,600 130,426 22,779,818 22,757,993 -0.10%

Expenses
General government 5,126,327 4,715,504 5,126,327 4,715,504 -8.01%
Town offices 765,689 794,776 765,689 794,776 3.80%
Financial administration 203,933 210,793 203,933 210,793 3.36%
Public safety 2,086,915 2,188,906 2,086,915 2,188,906 4.89%
Fire safety 636,054 659,014 636,054 659,014 3.61%
Waste water treatment 1,111,375 1,250,054 1,111,375 1,250,054 12.48%
Highway department 2,550,593 2,543,727 2,550,593 2,543,727 -0.27%
Grants and contributions 283,634 298,293 283,634 298,293 5.17%
Education 10,611,668 11,036,577 10,611,668 11,036,577 4.00%
Debt service 465,423 433,544 465,423 433,544 -6.85%
Capital and special appropriations - 160,349 - 160,349 100.00%
Unallocated depreciation 18,125 18,124 18,125 18,124 -0.01%
Transfer station 191,777 194,126 191,777 194,126 1.22%

Total expenses 23,859,736 24,309,661 191,777 194,126 24,051,513 24,503,787 1.88%

Increase/-decrease in net assets (1,272,518) (1,682,094) 823 (63,700) (1,271,695) (1,745,794)

Net assets - beginning, restated 23,874,553 22,602,035 172,295 173,118 24,046,848 22,775,163

Net assets - ending $ 22,602,035 $ 20,919,941 $ 173,118 §$ 109,418 $ 22,775,153 $ 21,029,359

Note: Capital and special appropriations represents minor capital items that do not qualify for capitalization.
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Warren uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town of Warren's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Town of Warren's financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2009, the Town of Warren's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $4,814,634, a decrease of $2,725,594 in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 78.9 percent or $3,797,078 constitutes unreserved and undesignated fund
balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of the
fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period,
represents unexpendable inventory items, or has been designated to fund appropriations of the
subsequent fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Warren. As of June 30, 2009, the
total fund balance of the general fund was $4,899,669 of which $3,882,113 was unreserved and
undesignated. This unreserved fund balance represents approximately 16 percent of total
general fund expenditures. Of this total fund balance, $2,451,711 was appropriated to meet
2009-10 general fund capital expenditures.

The General Fund’'s balance decreased by $2,235,854 in fiscal year 2009. The 2009 annual
budget for the Town of Warren's general fund identified the re-appropriation of $2,401,857 in
fund balance which represents capital and special appropriations carry-forwards. Actual
expenditures were lower than budgeted expenditures by $24,551. Actual revenues and other
sources exceeded budgeted revenues in the general fund by $69,336.

The increases in revenues were primarily associated with the receipt of sewer use fees in
excess of the budget. Other smaller amounts of more then budgeted were in Docks &
Moorings and Third Party Billings. Expenditures were $24,551 lower than the appropriated
amounts. Public Safety and Debt Service payments exceeded their budget primarily due to
overtime expenditures. Expenditures for education totaled $11,036,577 and accounted for
roughly 40% of total General Fund expenditures. General Fund capital expenditures were
$2,671,778 for the fiscal year, with carry-forward appropriations of $2,451,711 designated for
future projects.

Proprietary fund. The Town of Warren's proprietary fund provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Total net assets of the Transfer Station fund at the end of the year amounted to $109,418. The
total decrease in net assets was $63,700.

The financial statements and a statement of cash flows for the enterprise funds can be found
on pages 15, 16 and 17 of this report.



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were relatively minor.
There were no additional appropriations necessary during the fiscal year.

As identified earlier, actual revenues and other sources exceeded budgeted revenues by
$69,336 primarily in the intergovernmental revenue, fees and permit categories. Expenditures
were $24,551 in excess of appropriated amounts, with the Police Department exceeding their
budget due primarily to overtime expenditures.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Town of Warren's investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business type activities as of June 30, 2009, amounts to $28,843,947 net of accumulated
depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other
than buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress. The total
decrease in the Town of Warren's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was a
total of approximately $188,844 net of depreciation. Additional information on the Town of
Warren's capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements, which accompany
this report.

Town of Warren's Capital Assets

Several major additions to the Town’s capital assets related to its governmental fund activities
were realized during the year, including: purchase Fire Department equipment and fire
apparatus, infrastructure repairs and improvements, Department of Public Works equipment,
three police cruisers, and sewer infrastructure projects.

There were no major fixed asset additions at the transfer station.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Warren has total general
obligation debt outstanding of $11,203,692 entirely backed by the fuil faith and credit of the
government.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 3
percent of its total equalized valuation. As of June 30, 2009, the Town of Warren’s ratio of
Town Debt to net taxable valuation is 0.73%. The current debt limitation for the Town of
Warren is $43,533,870, which significantly exceeds the Town of Warren's current outstanding
general obligation debt.

Additional information of the Town of Warren's long-term debt can be found in note 7 to the
financial statements and also in the statistical section of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

$2,451,711 of the unreserved fund balance in the general fund was appropriated for spending
in the 2009-10 budget. In addition, the Town’'s appropriation to fund its contribution to the
regional school district decreased by $697,034, or 6.3%, to $10,339,543 for the 2000-10 fiscal
year.



Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Warren's finances
for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed in writing to the Treasurer’s Office, Town Hall, 514 Main Street, Warren, RI 02885.



0 'ARREN. RHODE IS

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net)
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets (non-depreciable)
Capital assets (net of depreciation)
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Unearned/deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
OPEB liabilities (net)
Long-term liabilities (net)
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for permanent trust funds

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 5,081,573 $ (93,212) $ 4,988,361
29,519 29,519
662,446 46,696 709,142
17,963 17,963
5,893 5,893
1,387,030 1,387,030
27,277,129 179,788 27,456,917
34,461,533 133,272 34,594,825
562,217 4,182 566,399
108,089 2,677 110,766
227,191 227,191
1,455,825 1,455,825
508,894 508,894
10,679,396 16,995 10,696,391
13,541,612 23,854 13,565,466
17,460,467 109,418 17,569,885
72,822 72,822
3,386,652 - 3,386,652
$ 20,919,941 $ 109,418 $ 21,029,359

See Notes to Financial Statements
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IOWN OF WARREN. RHODE ISLAND

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net)
Inventories
Due from federal & state

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liablildes:

Accounts payable

Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:

Reserved for inventory

Reserved for encumbrances

Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent expenditure
Reported in General Fund
Reported in special revenue funds
Reported in capital project funds
Reported in permanent trust funds

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds
$ 5,176,408 $ (94,835) $ 5,081,573
29,519 29,519
579,195 83,251 662,446
17,963 17,963
5,893 5,893
5,779,459 17,935 5,797,394
555,655 6,562 562,217
324,135 96,408 420,543
879,790 102,970 982,760
17,963 17,963
999,593 999,593
2,451,711 2,451,711
1,430,402 1,430,402
(157,857) (157,857)
72,822 72,822
4,899,669 (85,035) 4,814,634

$ 5,779,459 $ 17,935

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets differ because:

Capital assets used in governmental
activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable

in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the funds

28,664,159

(12,135,221)

Accrued interest related to issuance of long-term

liabilities.

Accrual of net OPEB obligation

Deferred revenues (net of an allowance for
uncollectables) are recorded in the funds,

but are not deferred under the measurement

focus employed in the Statement of

Net Assets

Net Assets of governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

(108,089)

(508,894)

193,352

20,919,941



TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Revenues and Other Financing Sources,
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

For the year ended June 30, 2009

Revenues
General property taxes
Interest and investment income
Licenses, fees, permits and fines
Water and sewer use fees
Intergovernmental
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current;
General government
Town offices
Financial administration
Public safety
Fire safety
Woaste water treatment
Highway department
Grants and contributions
Education
Costs of collection
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and other costs
Capital.

Capital and special appropriations

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures before transfers

Other financing sources/uses
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net other financing sources/uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund balance . beginning of the year

Fund balance - end of the year

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
$ 19,451,101 $ - $ 19,451,101
301,197 (8,948) 292,249
818,925 11,717 830,642
68,754 - 68,754
1,756,079 509,714 2,265,793
121,172 7,070 128,242
22,517,228 519,553 23,036,781
3,087,401 628,460 3,715,861
794,776 794,776
210,793 210,793
2,063,636 61,638 2,125,274
418,627 71,331 489,958
1,139,301 58,403 1,197,704
1,667,864 1,667,864
298,293 298,293
11,036,577 11,036,577
30,581 30,581
1,366,439 1,366,439
447,725 447,725
1,686,335 194,195.00 1,880,530
24,248,348 1,014,027 25,262,375
(1,731,120) (494,474) (2,225,594)
- 14,344 14,344
(504,734) (9,610) (514,344)
(504,734) 4,734 (500,000)
(2,235,854) (489,740) (2,725,594)
7,135,523 404,705 7,540,228
$ 4899669 § (85035 _$ 4.814,634

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds (B-2) to the Statement of Activities (A-2)

For the year ended June 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (B-2)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount

by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the
current period

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.

This amount is the net effect of these differences.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in governmental funds

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities
in the Statement of Activities (A-2)

See Notes to Financial Statements
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$ (2,725,594)

(188,559)

1,625,080

90,786

(383,807)

$ (1,682,094)



TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Business-type

Activity
Transfer
Station

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ (93,212)

Receivables (net) 46,696

(46,516)

Capital assets (net) 179,788

TOTAL ASSETS 133,272
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 4,182

Accrued expenses 2,677

Compensated absences 16,995

TOTAL LIABILITIES 23,854
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets 109,418

Unrestricted -

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 109,418

See Notes to Financial Statements
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TOWN OF WARREN, ODE ISLAN
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Business-type

Activity
Transfer
Station
Operating Revenues:
Charges for usage and service $ 130,426
Operating Expenses:
Salaries 68,849
Other expenses 124,992
Depreciation 285
Total Operating Expenses 194,126
Income from operations (63,700)
Net assets - beginning of the year 173,118
Net assets - end of the year $ 109,418

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Statement of Cash Flow
Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Cash due to other funds
Net cash (used for) operating activities

Net (decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of the year

Cash, end of the year

Business-type
Activity
Transfer
Station

$ 112,069
(122,623)
(68.,849)
(13,809)
(93,212)

(93,212)

$  (93212)

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Income (loss) from operations $ (63,700)

Adjustments to reconcile:
Depreciation 285
(Increase) decrease in receivables (18,357)
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds (13,809)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (517)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 440
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 2,446

Net cash (used for) operating activities $ (93,212)

See Notes to Financial Statements
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Private- OPEB
Purpose Trust Agency
Trusts Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 110,485 $ 713,745 $ 50,278
Investments 527,700
Accounts receivable 38,055
Total Assets 638,185 713,745 88,333
LIABILITIES
Accrued payroll 13,128
Deposits Held in Custody for Others 75,205
Total Liabilities - - $ 88,333
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for
private purposes $ 638185 $§ 713,745

See Notes to Financial Statements
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Private- OPEB
Purpose Trust
Trusts Fund
ADDITIONS:
Investment income $ (162,912) § 13,233
Contributions to trust fund
Total additions (162,912) 13,233
DEDUCTIONS:
Portfolio management fees 10,554
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers in 500,000
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (173,466) 513,233
Net Assets - beginning 811,651 200,512
Net Assets - ending $ 638,185 § 713,745

See Notes to Financial Statements
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements. Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The Town has elected not
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The accounting and reporting framework and the more
significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note.

As a general rule the effect of Interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. The exceptions to this rule are the charges between the transfer station enterprise fund and the
general fund, as elimination of these charges would improperly distort the direct costs and operating
revenues reported for the functions concerned.

Reporting Entity

The Town of Warren was founded in 1746 and incorporated in 1747. The Town operates under a
“council-manager” form of government, with a five member Town Council headed by a Council President and
a Town Manager. The Town Manager exercises the executive power of Town government and is responsible
to the Town Council for day to day operation of the Town’s affairs. All legislative powers of the Town are
vested in the Town Council except such powers that are reserved by Charter to the Financial Town Meeting,
including the ordering of any tax making appropriations.

Beginning with the November 1996 election, terms of the elected officials were staggered and with
the November 1998 election, all members serve a four-year term. The Town Council is granted all powers to
enact, amend or repeal ordinances relating to the Town’s property, affairs and government, including the
power to create offices, departments or agencies of the Town, preserving the public peace, health and safety,
establishing personnel policies, giving effect to any vote of the Financial Town Meeting authorizing the
issuance of bonds and providing for an annual audit of the Town’s accounts.

An act was passed at the January 1991 session of the General Assembly which authorized the
Towns of Warren and Bristol to form a regional school district of all the public schools in the Towns of Bristol
and Warren to include all grades and programs currently provided and any other grades and programs
specified by the regional school committee.

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14. Under GASB Statement No. 14,
the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its component units. Component
units are legally separate entities that meet any one of the following three tests:

Test1—  The primary government appoints the voting majority of the board of the potential component unit
and is able to impose its will on the potential component unit and/or is in a relationship of financial
benefit or burden with the potential component unit;

Test2-  The potential component is fiscally dependent upon the primary government; or
Test3—  The financial statements would be misleading if data from the potential component unit were not
included

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Transfer Station
Although this entity met certain criteria of the tests listed above, the entity is not deemed to have
separate legal status apart from the Town. As a result, the financial data of the above entity has been
included as an enterprise fund within the Town'’s financial statements.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
v The Town has implemented GASB Statement No. 49 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations. The Town did not recognize an impact from this statement as of
June 30, 2009.
The Town will adopt the following new accounting pronouncement in future years:
v" GASB Statement No. 51 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, effective
for the Town's fiscal year end June 30, 2010. The impact of these pronouncements on the
Town's financial statements has not been determined.
v GASB Statement No. 53 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments,
effective for the Town's fiscal year end June 30, 2010. The impact of these pronouncements

on the Town's financial statements has not been determined.

v GASB Statement No. 54 - Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

The impact of these pronouncements on the Town'’s financial statements has not been determined.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered
to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary
operating fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

(a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual

governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for

all funds of that category or type, and

(b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total
for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds
General Fund
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is always classified as a major fund.

It is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in
other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.

Capital Project Fund

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction
of specific capital projects or items. The reporting entity includes only one Capital Project Fund and it is used
to account for the acquisition of capital assets.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Permanent Funds

The Permanent Funds account for assets held by the Town pursuant to trust agreements. The
principle portion of this fund type must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve the objectives
of the fund.

Proprietary Fund

Proprietary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public.
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on
net income measurement similar to the private sector.

Fiduciary Funds (Not included in government wide statements)
Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the Town in a purely custodial capacity. The reporting entity
includes three agency funds. Since agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities), they do
not involve the measurement of results of operations. The agency funds are as follows:

- Unclaimed estates in Probate Court
- Road Duty
- Performance Bond Fund

Private-purpose Trust Funds

Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for use by parties
outside of the Town, and can not be used at the Town's discretion or to support the Town's general
operations. These trusts are for the benefit of local educational organizations, social benefit groups, and other
private parties.

OPEB Trust Fund

The Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) trust fund is used to account for payments of
postemployment benefits (health insurance) that the Town provides to qualified retirees in accordance with
union contract provisions

Major and Non-Major Funds

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Fund Brief Description

Major:

General Fund: See above for description
Proprietary Fund: See above for description

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Non-Major:

Special Revenue Funds:

Capital Project Fund:

Permanent Funds:

Measurement Focus

Enterprise Zone, Senior Center, Pump Out Station, Police Phone Grant,
Rescue Equipment, Guy Buy Back, Accident Reconstruction Grant,
Recycling Grant, Historical Street Signs, ACO Donations, Children's Crusade
Fund, Cops that Care, Social Services Donation, Warren Beautification
Donation, Cops Technology, Town Beach Storm water, Homestead Park
Fund, Revaluation Fund, Animal Spading, CDBG Loan Repayment, Police
Bicycle Patrol Grant, AFIS Live Scan Fed Grant, Rl Byrnes Justice Grant,
Memorial Tree Fund, Sewer Project - EPA, Transient Dock Grant, Summer
Concerts, Fire Department Reserve, Jamiel's Park Chafee, Homeland
Security, Substance Abuse, Fire Inspections, Jamiel's Park Grant, Fire State
Med's Plan, Police Forfeiture, Industrial Pretreatment, Veterans Honor Roll,
Government Center, Pagers & Radios Fire, Narcotics, and Employee Charity
Fund.

See above for description

Sarah B. Burtis Fund, Police Trust, and Town Trust.

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities both governmental
and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in

item b. below.

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the
"economic resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:

(@) All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources” measurement focus. Only
current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their
operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources
during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable
financial resources at the end of the period. The Town considers property taxes as available
if they are collected within 60 days after year end.

(b) The proprietary fund and private purpose trust funds utilize "economic resources"
measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the
determination of net income, financial position and cash flows. All assets and liabilities
(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Fund equity is
classified as net assets.

(c) Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore,
measurement focus is not applicable to them.

(CONTINUED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The maijor revenue sources that is susceptible to accrual is property tax revenue. Under this
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and available". Measurable
means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the
current period within 60 days thereafter to pay current liabilities. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest
which are reported when due.

All proprietary funds, agency funds, and private purpose trust funds utilize the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided and operating grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the proprietary fund's
principal operation. The principal operating revenues of the transfer station enterprise fund are charges for
waste disposal services. Operating expenses for the transfer station enterprise fund include the costs of
providing its services, including administration and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenue and
expense items not meeting these criteria are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

Cash

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. Cash equivalents are all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. Substantially, all of the Town’s
cash and cash equivalents are held in public deposit institutions, except for $525 in unsecured petty
cash. Town pools cash resources of its various funds to facilitate the management of cash. Cash
applicable to a particular fund is readily identifiable. Cash in excess of current requirements is
invested in short-term treasury securities or as disclosed as part of the Town’s investments.
Investments

The Town invests in various types of investments, which are stated at fair value. There are
no investments reported at amortized cost.

(CONTINUED)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabllities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Accounts Receivable

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical
trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
receivable amounted to $160,000 at June 30, 2009. Major receivable balances for the governmental
activities include property taxes (68% of balance) and intergovernmental grants and aid (32% of
balance). Business-type activities report service fees as its major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue
accruals such as property taxes and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they
are usually both measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available
are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in
the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund
material receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for
uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts
receivable.

Accounts Payable

Payable balances consist primarily of payables to vendors, with the following exception:
payables in the general fund include approximately $189,000 of accrued salaries and benefits to
employees.

Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each December 31
(lien date) and attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1 (levy date). Taxes are due and
payable in quarterly installments on the August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1 following the
levy date. Taxes due and unpaid after the respective dues dates are subject to interest and
penalties. The Town has the ultimate right to foreclose on property for which taxes have not been
paid by the following July 1 when the next year's tax is levied. Property taxes levied are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. Property tax revenues are recorded in accordance with the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

Inventory

The Town maintains an “inventory” of fuel for use by the Town owned vehicles in various
departments and buses used by the Regional School District. Inventory is maintained on a periodic
system and is stated at cost (first in, first out method of inventory valuation). Inventories in the
Governmental Funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed.

Prepaids
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are

recorded as prepaid assets. Prepaid expenditures recorded in governmental type funds do not reflect
current appropriate resources and, thus, an equivalent portion of the fund balance is reserved.

(CONTINUED)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liablilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Prope Plant and Equipment

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on
whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and
whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, long-lived assets are accounted for as capital
assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is
unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the
date of donation. Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets acquired prior
to June 30, 1993.

Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or
more and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.

Infrastructure assets, (such as sidewalks, curbs, drainage systems, and road improvements)
acquired by the Town have been capitalized and reported within the financial statements.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded, as an allocated expense in the
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets.
Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings and land improvements 25 - 40 years
Infrastructure 25 - 40 years
Equipment and Heavy machinery 10 - 20 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Office equipment 5-10 years
Other assets 5-10 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital
assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for in the same manner as in the
government-wide statements.

Deferred Revenues

_ Represent funds received in advance of being owed or receivables which will be collected
and included in revenues of future fiscal years. In the General Fund, deferred revenues relate to
property tax receivables which are assessed on December 31.

(CONTINUED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)
Interfund Transactions

Interfund activity within and among the funds of the Town have been classified and reported
as follows:;

- Reciprocal interfund activities:

. Interfund loans are reported as interfund receivables in the lending fund and
interfund payables in borrower funds.

. Interfund services are reported as revenues in the seller fund and as
expenditures or expenses in the purchasing fund.

- Non-reciprocal interfund activities:

. Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financing
uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the
funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds transfers are reported after
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

. Interfund reimbursements are repayments from the fund responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to other funds that initially paid for them.

Reimbursements are not displayed separately within the financial
statements.

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

(a) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

(b) Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

(©) Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt".

(CONTINUED)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Llabllities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated and undesignated.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement,
termination of death, certain employees are compensated for unused vacation and sick leave (subject
to certain limitations) at their current rates of pay. The amount recorded is the unused days earned at
the current rate of pay. For governmental activities the general fund is used to satisfy this liability as it
becomes due, while the transfer station enterprise fund accounts for all settlement of business-type
liabilities for compensated absences.

Town (including enterprise fund)

Town employees are entitled to vacation based on length of service. Up to two weeks of
vacation days are allowed to carry over to succeeding years.

Town employees are entitled to 1.5 days sick leave per month worked. Sick leave may be
accumulated to a maximum of 180 days. Upon retirement, employees have a vested interest in 75%
of their accumulated sick time.

Full time Town employees retiring between the ages of 62 and 65 will continue to receive

medical insurance coverage until age 65. Full-time Town employees retiring at age 65 will have
applicable medical coverage paid for by the Town for a period of three years.

Police

Police are entitled to vacation based on length of service. Vacation days may be carried
over, but must be used within three years.

Police are entitled to 1.5 days of sick leave for each month in which they work a minimum
number of hours. Sick leave may be accumulated to a maximum of 180 days. Upon retirement,
police have a vested interest in 75% of their accumulated sick time and they may receive medical
coverage for a period of four years.

(CONTINUED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Llabilltles, and Fund Equity (Continued)
Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this ($12,135,221) difference are
as follows:

BONAS PAYADIE .......ooveviiinieiieeieiiete et ($11,203,692)
Compensated abSEeNCES ...........ccoveiiiiciiiiiiie e (931,529)
B 1o ) -] OO SURUUPOUUUURRUP ($12,135,221)

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The details of this $188,559 difference are as follows:

Capital outlays (net of disposals).............cccoceereenneen. ($1,908,740)
Depreciation eXpense...........cccocvveeerivereroiereeeinenens 1,720,181
Net adjustment...........ccooe i $ (188,559)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets.” The details of this $1,525,080 difference are as follows:

Change in interest accrued...........c.cccoovieeinniencn, $ 14,181
Reversal of legal contingency ..........c.ccceeeveeernennnecns 155,000
Increase in compensated absences.............ccceeee (10,540)
Principal repayments ...........cccococciiieinniric 1,366,439
Net adjustment.............ccooiiiei i $ 1,525,080

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.” The detail of this $383,807 difference is the accrual for OPEB liabilities (net).

(CONTINUED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets, Llabilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)
Another element of that reconciliation states that, “Revenues in the statement of activities that do not

provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in governmental funds.” The details of this
$90,786 difference are as follows:

Deferred revenue - beginning..........c.ccccoevveinnenen. $(130,783)
Deferred revenue — ending...........ccoceveeeiiiieercvnnnen. 221,569
Net difference..........cccccovvieiviieciiiiceceee e $ 90,786

BUDGETARY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE
Budgetary Data

The Town Council adopts an annual budget for the General Fund. The Town Council is authorized to
transfer budgeted amounts within and among departments and to authorize emergency expenditures. Any
revisions that alter total expenditures must be approved by the taxpayers by a vote at the Financial Town
Meeting. Management cannot make any transfers without prior Council approval. The governing Council
made no supplemental budgetary appropriation during the fiscal year. The budget for the General Fund is
presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-Budgeted and
Actual. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end unless specifically approved for carryover to the
following year by the taxpayers by a vote at a Financial Town Meeting. The budget for the General Fund is
appropriated at the individual account level, also know as the line item level.

The Town does not budget for the combined Special Revenue Funds or the Capital Project Funds,
since budgetary control is maintained on an individual basis. Since grant periods may differ from the Town’s
fiscal year, a comparison of budgetary information may not be meaningful and has not been presented in the
accompanying financial statements.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditures of funds are recorded in order to preserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is

employed in the General Fund Budget. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances.
Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2009, expenditures exceeded budget at the department level as follows:

Department Excess
Public Safety........cccoovveeieieiicic $115,597

(CONTINUED)
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits

Deposits are in various financial institutions and are carried at cost, which approximates market
value. The carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the balance sheet as “Cash” and includes
$625 of petty cash.

At year-end, the Town's carrying amount of deposits was $5,862,869 and the bank balance was
$5,983,063. Of the bank balance, $3,795,554 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance. The remaining
balance, $2,187,509 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or its trust
department or agent but not in the Town’s name.

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits

Deposits and Investments. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Town’s deposits may not be returned to it. The collateralization of certificates of deposit or repurchase
agreements must be in an amount of at least 102% of market value to the amount of the deposit is the Town's
investment policy for custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk. It is the policy of the Town to limit the length of its investment maturities in order to
manage the exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2009, the Town’s investments in Money Markets are not rated, as the fund
invests in short-term Government obligations and other instruments collateralized or secured by U.S.
Treasury obligations. The U.S. Treasury does not directly or indirectly insure or guarantee the performance of
the fund. Treasury obligations have historically involved minimal risk of loss if held to maturity. However,
fluctuations in market interest rates may cause the value of Treasury obligations in the Fund's portfolio to
fluctuate.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Town places the following limits on the maximum percent of
portfolio it may invest in any one specific instrument: the portfolio shall at all times comprise of at least three
separate investment instruments; with no one instrument holding more than 50% of total fund principal.
Furthermore, at least 30% of the invested funds shall be in instruments that can be redeemed by the Town on
demand within one day.

Investments
The Town invests in various types of investments which are stated at fair value. The Finance Director

has control over the type of investments made. Neither the Town Charter nor any other legally contracted
agreements limits the type of investments that may be made.

(CONTINUED)
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3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (continued)

At June 30, 2009, the Town held the following investments:

Description

American Express
Bank America

Boeing Co.

Citigroup, Inc.
Emerson Electrical Co.
Federal Farm Cr
Federal Farm Cr
Federal Farm Ln
Merck & Co., Inc.

WM Wrigley, Jr. Co.
U.S. Treasury Notes - 4.250%
Common Stocks

Total

Interest Rate Risk

N/A

Maturity

05/02/2013
11/15/2014
02/15/2012
05/07/2015
11/01/2011
01/12/2016
01/18/2011
07/08/2024
03/01/2015
07/15/2010
10/15/2010

Market Value

$ 34,754
18,803
27,433
12,253
10,770
20,125
16,106
19,878
26,119
24,938
26,159

319,881

$ 557,219

The Town has investments in corporate bonds which have interest rates that are
fixed for long periods and are subject to more variability in their fair value as a result of future
changes in interest rates. The Town does not have a formal policy which addresses the
interest rate risks associated with its investments. The following investments are subject to

interest rate risk:

Description Interest Rate
American Express 5.875%
Bank America 5.125%
Boeing Co. 6.500%
Citigroup, Inc. 4.875%
Emerson Electrical Co. 5.750%
Merck & Co., Inc. 4.750%
Credit Risk

Maturity

05/02/2013
11/15/2014
02/15/2012
05/07/2015
11/01/2011
03/01/2015

Market Value

34,754
18,803
27,433
12,253
10,770
26,119

h PN A PHA

The Town does not have a formal policy which addresses the credit risks associated with its
investments. The following investments are subject to credit risk:

Description Standard & Poors
American Express A2

Bank America A2

Boeing Co. A2
Citigroup, Inc. A-
Emerson Electrical Co. A

Merck & Co., Inc. AA-

WM Wrigley, Jr. Co. not rated

Moody's Investor Service

A2
A2
A2
BAA1
A2
AA3
not rated

(CONTINUED)
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town does not have a formal policy that limits the amount that may be invested in any one
issuer. The following investments are subject to concentration of credit risk:

Percentage of

Description Total Investments
General EIBCEIC ......c.oo.oeeeeeeeeeeeoe oo 5.90%
TXU COMP. oot 7.42%

All of the Trust Funds' investments are held in an internal investment pool. Net investment income for
the year is allocated to each Trust Fund based on the ratio of each fund’s fund balance to the total combined
fund balance at the beginning of the year. Operating transfers out to Trust beneficiaries are allocated to the
Trust Funds for which the withdrawals are allowable. Each withdrawal is allocated to the applicable Trust

Funds based on the ratio of each fund’s fund balance to the combined fund balance of the applicable funds at
the beginning of the year.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Activity for governmental activity capital assets is summarized below:

Balances Balances
June 30, 2008 Additions Deductions June 30, 2009

Governmental activity capital assets

Land (not being depreciated) $ 1,078,597 § - $ - $ 1,078,597
Construction in progress

(not being depreciated) 87,249 212,184 299,433
Buildings and land improvements 15,096,480 171,304 15,267,784
Motor Vehicles 2,845,451 883,563 3,729,014
Equipment 9,512,635 291,008 71,280 9,732,363
Infrastructure 34,469,948 233,402 34,703,350

Total Cost 63,090,360 1,791,461 71,280 64,810,541
Less: accumulated depreciation:;
Buildings and improvements (9,056,864) (309,975) (9,366,839)
Motor Vehicles (1,858,852) (284,218) (2,143,070)
Equipment (7,277,595) (231,876) (7,509,471)
Infrastructure (16,044,331) (1,082,671) (17,127,002)
Total accumulated depreciation (34,237,642) (1,908,740) - (36,146,382)
Net capital assets $ 28852718 $ (117,279) 71,280 $ 28,664,159
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4, CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Activity for the Proprietary Fund capital assets is summarized below:

Balances Balances
June 30, 2008 Additions Deductions June 30, 2009
Business activity capital assets
Vehicles $ 73952 $ - $ - $ 73,952
Equipment and Trailers 318,830 318,830
Total Cost 392,782 - - 392,782
Less: accumulated depreciation
Vehicles (47,542) (47,542)
Equipment and Trailers (165,167) (285) (165,452)
Total accumulated depreciation (212,709) (285) - (212,994)
Net Proprietary Fund Assets 3 180,073 $ (285) $ - $ 179,788

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions/programs of the Town:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 729,715
Public Safety 63,632
Fire Safety 169,056
Waste Water Treatment 52,350
Highway Department 875,863
Unallocated 18,124

Total $ 1,908,740

Business-type activity:
Transfer Station $ 285

5, OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 12, the Town provides postemployment benefits
(health insurance) in accordance with union contract provisions. For the year ended June 30, 2009, four (5)
municipal retirees met the eligibility requirements for Town provided coverage. The Town pays 100% of the
cost of these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis, which amounted to approximately $61,252.

The accrual basis of accounting is used. The Town's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB)
cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the Town (ARC). The Town has
engaged an actuary to calculate the ARC and related information per the provisions of GASB Statement 45
for employers with plans including more than 100 total plan members. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the
Town's annual OPEB cost for the year ended June 30, 2009, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
the Town's net OPEB obligation to the plan as of June 30, 2009.

(CONTINUED)
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5.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (i OPEB) (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost Year ended June 30, 2009
Normal Cost $ 391,647
Amortization of UAAL (12,843)
Interest 5,003
Annual Required Contribution (expense) 383,807
Net OPEB obligation (expense) at beginning of year 125,087
Net OPEB obligation (expense) at end of year $ 508,894

Town contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2009 represented 0% of annual OPEB
expense, of $383,807. The difference represents the Town's OPEB obligation to the plan and has been
accrued as an expense in the government-wide financial statements.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and annual required contributions are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information on page 47 will, over time,
present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets (none at present) is
increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Funding Policy

The Town's funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions to the plans at
rates that, for individual employees, increase gradually over time so that sufficient assets will be available to
pay benefits when due.

Funded Status of Plan

The required supplementary information which follows the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding progress
of the General Municipal Employees' Pension Plan with a valuation date of June 30, 2007 which is the most
recent report available from the State who administers this plan:

- Actuarial value of assets - $700,000

- Actuarial accrued liability - $3,018,423

- Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) - $2,318,423
- Funded Ratio - 23.19%

- Annual covered payroll - $3,019,466

- UAAL as percentage of payroll - 76.78%

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (as
understood by the employees and management) and include the type of benefit provided at the time of each
valuation. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations. The following assumptions were made:

(CONTINUED)
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Continued)

The age adjustment factor applied to premiums during the valuation process to better approximate
the actual costs associated with retiree benefits in situations where blended premiums are charged to actives
and retirees. This factor is used in the financial reporting process to similarly adjust the contribution made
toward OPEB.

- Valuation date — June 30, 2007

- Discount rate - 4.00%

- Participation - All eligible retirees are assumed to elect medical and dental coverage.
- Payroll Growth Rate - 3.50%

- Amortization Period - 10 years

- Amortization Method - Level Percent of Payroll Amortization

- Age Adjustment Factor - 55

DEFERRED REVENUES

General Fund deferred revenues relate to revenue that is measurable but not available. General
Fund deferred revenues are summarized as follows:

Property taxes receivable (net)..............c..cccoveeuenn... $ 454,918
Less: current year 60 day accrual............................ (130,783)
Total deferred taxrevenue............................... $324.135

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2009

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Schedule of long-term debt by purpose is as follows:
Public improvements $

Government Center
Compensated absenses

Total $

Amount Percent
11,083,692 91.3%
120,000 1.0%
931,529 7.7%
12,135,221 100%

The ratio of Town debt to net taxable valuation at June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Net taxable valuation ............coooeeveveeee e

$1,451,129,017

Town debt outstanding...........cccccevveieieiiiciicie, $ 12,135,221
Ratio of Town debt to net taxable valuation................. .84%
Schedule of long-term bond and debt requirements:
Fiscal Year Ended Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 1,366,047 $ 397,224 $ 1,763,271
2011 1,053,240 347,368 1,400,608
2012 865,749 311,711 1,177,460
2013 834,338 283,024 1,117,362
2014 578,005 255,539 833,544
2015-2019 2,988,956 972,213 3,961,169
" 2020-2024 2,606,357 420,764 3,027,121
2025-2028 911,000 76,008 987,008
$ 11,203,692 $ 3,063,851 $ 14,267,543

RESTATEMENTS

Net assets at June 30, 2008 have been restated for the reclassification of fund types utilized in last
year's issued financial statements. The details of the restatements and impact on net assets are as follows:

Statement of Net Assets — Governmental Activities

Net assets at June 30, 2008, as originally stated............cc.ccooveveiennne.
Understatement of fund balance due to misstatement of trust fund
Net assets at June 30, 2008, asrestated ......................cccovvvevvvii.n.

Statement of Net Assets — Private Purpose Trusts

_ Net assets at June 30, 2008, as originally stated .............c.cocoovvvervenenene,
Overstatement of fund balance due to misstatement of fund...................
Net assets at June 30,2008, asrestated .........................c.ccco......

$22,599,936

— 2099

$22.602.035

$813,926

—(2.275)
$811,651

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

9, NET ASSETS
a) Fund Deficlts

The following individual funds had deficit fund equity balances as of June 30, 2009:

ENterprise Zone ..........cocoeveiieoieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeen $2,288
Pump Out Station............ccooeeiiicicieiiine e, $13,337
Cops Technology Grant..............ocooeveveeeeeeeeeeeeercveeeennns $1,233
Town Beach Stormwater.............cccoooveveeevveeeeeeeeeveenn, $30,574
Homestead Park FUNd...............cooovviiiioeeeeeeeeee e, $17,847
Revaluation FUN.............ooooieioeeeeeee oo $23,674
RI State Byrnes Justice Grant .................ccccovvvevveevennen. $4,097
Jamiel's Park Chafee...........c.cccooveviviiiieeeeeeeeeee, $7,786
Jamiel's Park Grant..............ccocveveeeiiviieeeeeeeeeeeeeveees, $67,849
Community Development Block Grant...............cccoveu........ $94,614

b) Reserves/Designated Fund Balances

The Town of Warren records several types of reserves. The reserves indicate that a portion of fund
equity is segregated for a specific use. In addition, a portion of the unreserved fund equity is designated for
specific purposes.

General Fund Trust Funds
Reserved for encumbrances $ 999,593 $ -
Reserved for inventory 17,963
Reserved for nonexpendable bequests 673,519
Designated for expenditures 2,451,711
Unreserved 1,430,402
Total $ 4,899,669 $ 673,519

(c) Transfers In and Out

The principal purpose of interfund transfers is to provide a financing source to various funds that may not
have the ability to cover all costs with revenue generated by the fund. The composition of interfund transfers
for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out

General Fund $ 504,734
Childrens Crusade 3,844
Substance Abuse 3,844
Police Forfeiture 3,864
Industrial Pretreatment 1,902
Narcotics 5,766
Town Trust 4,734
OPEB Trust Fund 500,000

Total $ 514,344 $ 514,344

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

9. NET ASSETS
a) Fund Deficits

The following individual funds had deficit fund equity balances as of June 30, 2009:

ENterpriSe ZoNe .........cccooeevieimneiee e $2,288
Pump Out Station............c.oooveiiieiieeee e $13,337
Cops Technology Grant............cccoevvviieeeveeeeeeeereeeeeens $1,233
Town Beach Stormwater...........cccooooevvvivieeeoeeeeeeeee, $30,574
Homestead Park Fund............ccocoovvvevineieeeceeeeeeeen. $17,847
Revaluation FUNd..............c.oooviviiiieoeeeieeeeeee e $23,674
R! State Byrnes Justice Grant ...............c.cc.ccoevvemeeeennnan. $4,097
Jamiel's Park Chafee..............cocooevieiiviiceceeeeeen, $7,786
Jamiel's Park Grant............c.ccoooovviviiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $67,849
Community Development Block Grant.............................. $94,614

b) Reserves/Designated Fund Balances

The Town of Warren records several types of reserves. The reserves indicate that a portion of fund
equity is segregated for a specific use. In addition, a portion of the unreserved fund equity is designated for
specific purposes.

General Fund Trust Funds
Reserved for encumbrances $ 999,593 3 -
Reserved for inventory 17,963
Reserved for nonexpendable bequests 673,519
Designated for expenditures 2,451,711
Unreserved 1,430,402
Total 3 4,899,669 $ 673,519

(c) Transfers In and Out

The principal purpose of interfund transfers is to provide a financing source to various funds that may not
have the ability to cover all costs with revenue generated by the fund. The composition of interfund transfers
for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out

General Fund $ - $ 504,734
Childrens Crusade 3,844
Substance Abuse 3,844
Police Forfeiture 3,864
Industrial Pretreatment 1,902
Narcotics 5,766
Town Trust 4,734
OPEB Trust Fund 500,000

Total $ 514,344 $ 514,344

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

10.

11.

12.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
Town assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are insured
through the Town's participation in the Rl Interlocal Risk Management Trust (Trust), a public entity risk pool
operated for the benefit of the State's various public entities. The Town pays an annual premium for Worker's
Compensation, Property and Liability, and Excess Liability insurance coverage. Settled claims from these
risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the past three years.

The Town is ailso involved in several lawsuits which are not covered by the risk management
insurance. Legal Counsel has expressed an opinion as to the ultimate outcome of all the cases, and as a
result, an accrued contingency has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Town has a contract with a commercial management company for the operation and
maintenance of the sewer treatment facility and pump stations. The contract is renewable annually every July
1, with the annual cost determined through the Town's annual budget process.

The Town has an agreement with the local water authority which requires annual rental payments for
fire hydrants. The agreement expires June 30, 2018 and requires annual payments of $400 per hydrant. The
minimum payments under this agreement for each of the fiscal years remaining in the agreement are
expected to be approximately $73,600.

The Town has a commitment to fund its proportionate share of the 2009-2010 budget of the Bristol-
Warren Regional School District in the amount of $10,794,979.

The government is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of most of these lawsuits
is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the government's counsel that resolution of these matters
which may have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the government have been
appropriately provided for.

PENSION PLAN
Plan Description

The State of Rhode island through the Retirement Board, administers the Municipal Employee’s
Retirement System that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for pension benefits to be
provided to employees of municipalities, housing authorities, water and sewer districts, and municipal police
and fireman that have elected to participate. The MERS receives all member and employer contributions with
investment earnings being added to the fund and available for reinvestment. Assets are invested by the State
Investment Commission. The State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations issues a publicly available
annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
MERS. The financial report may be obtained by writing to Employees’ Retirement System of Rhode Island,
40 Fountain Street, 1% Floor, Providence, Rl 02903-1854 or by calling (401) 222-2203.

All full-time employees of the Town of Warren are covered by the Municipal Employees Retirement
System (MERS) of Rhode Island, which is an agent multiple-employer Public Employee Retirement System
(PERS).

(CONTINUED)
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12,

PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Plan Description (Continued)

All full-time employees are eligible and must participate in the State MERS. The pension plan
provides retirement, deferred allowances, disability and survivor benefits to state employees, public school
teachers, and municipal employees who are employed by the participating municipality. The laws governing
retirement differ according to employment status as a State employee, public school teacher or municipal
employee. Under the MERS, there is one plan for general employees of the Town and two optional plans’ for
police and firemen. Benefits vest after 10 years of creditable service.

General employees may retire after reaching the age of 58 with 10 years of contributing service or
accumulating 30 years of service, regardiess of age. Employees who retire with 10 or more years of
creditable service are entitled to pension payments for the remainder of their lives equal to 2% of their final
three year average salary times the number of years for which they were employed by a participant in the
State PERS. The final three year average salary is the average salary of the employee during the final three
consecutive years of full-time employment exclusive of overtime, bonuses or severance pay. The maximum
benefit for municipal employees is 75% of their final three year average salary.

Under the optional plans available for police and firemen, the Town’s police and firemen have elected
the 20 year service option. Police and fire members may retire after reaching the age of 50 with twenty years
of contributing service or after 25 years of contributing service, regardless of age. This optional plan provides
a benefit equal to 2.5% of their final three average salaries, with a maximum benefit of 75% of final average
salary. In addition, any police member retiring after July 1, 1994 shall be entitied to C.O.L.A. Plan C as
defined in the General Laws of Rhode Island Title 45, Chapter 21-52, as amended.

Pension provisions include deferred allowances whereby an employee may terminate his or her
employment with the Town after accumulating 10 years of contributing service but before reaching the age of
58. If the employee does not withdraw his or her accumulated contributions, the employee is entitled to all
pension benefits upon reaching the age of 58.

The MERS also provides nonservice-connected disability benefits after 5 years of service, service-
connected disability benefits with no minimum service requirement, vested benefits after 10 years of service,
surviving spouse benefits and certain lump sum death benefits. The disabled employee is entitled to receive
disability payments for life, while the surviving spouse may receive death benefits for life or as long as he or
she does not remarry. Benefits are determined by state statute.

As of June 30, 2008, employee membership data related to the pension plan was as follows:

General Employees Police/Fire Total
Active member.............ccccoeveuenan 42 24 66
Retired member ........................... 51 25 76
93 49 142

(CONTINUED)
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12,

PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the MERS are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles using the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.
Interest income is accrued daily.

GASB No. 25 and GASB No. 27

Effective for periods beginning after June 15, 1997, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) requires the disclosure of pension related liabilities for public employer financial statements in
accordance with Statements, which replace GASB Statement No. 5, must be adhered to by any public
employee retirement system that follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

These disclosures are intended to establish a reporting framework that distinguishes between:

- Current financial information about plan assets and financial activities

- Actuarially determined information from a long-term perspective

- The funded status of the plan, and

- Progress being made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due

Method Used to Value Investments

MERS assets are invested under the direction and authority of the State Investment Commission
(SIC) and are recorded at fair value. The cost of investments sold is determined using the average cost
method.

Mortgage — Backed Securities
The System invests in various mortgage-backed securities, such as collateralized mortgage

obligations, interest-only strips, and principal-only strips. These securities are reported at cost.

Investments

The Municipal Employees’ Retirement System's investments are pooled with other funds.

(CONTINUED)
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12.

PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Administration of the System

The System is administered by the State of Rhode Island Retirement Board which consists of 15
members: the General Treasurer; the Director of Administration or his or her designee; the President of the
League of Cities and Towns or his or her designee; two (2) active teacher members of the retirement system
or officials from a teachers union to be elected by active teachers; one active municipal employee member of
the retirement system or an official from a municipal employees union to be elected by active municipal
employees; one retired member of the retirement system to be elected by retired members of the System; the
Chairperson of the House Finance Committee or his or her designee; the Chairperson of the Senate Finance
Committee or his or her designee; and two (2) public representatives, one of whom shall be a C.L.U.
competent in the ‘area of pension benefits, shall be appointed by the governor and whose term shall be four
(4) years, or until their successors are appointed.

The State Investment Commission oversees all investments made by the State of Rhode Island,
including those made for the System. Certain investments are made by investment managers, engaged by
the Commission, at their discretion in accordance with the investment objectives and guidelines for the
System. Short-term investments are made on a daily basis by the General Treasurer.

Rhode Island General Laws, Section 35-10-11 (b)(3) requires that all investments shall be made in
securities as would be acquired by prudent persons of discretion and intelligence who are seeking a
reasonable income and the preservation of capital.

Funding Policy

Section 45-21-41 of the Rhode Island General Laws requires that employees contribute a fixed
percentage of their compensation to the MERS. For the year ended June 30, 2009, this percentage was
7.0% for general employees, 9.0% for firemen and 9.0% for police under the elected option. Section 45-21-
42 of the Rhode Island General Laws contains the contribution requirements for participating employers.
These rates are actuarially determined for each participating employer on an annual basis in accordance with
Section 45-21-42 of the Rhode Island General Laws. For the year ended June 30, 2009, the actuarially
determined contribution rates for the Town were 13.88% of covered payroll for general employees, 26.11% of
covered payroll for police and firemen.

Employer contributions to the MERS include normal cost and a payment, where applicable, to
amortize the unfunded actuarial liability over a period of 25 years from the date the municipality joined the
system. The normal cost is determined using the entry age normal cost method. Modifications were adopted
by the Retirement Board, effective with the June 30, 1989 actuarial valuation which provides for the following:

An optional smoothing of contribution rates for municipalities with a rate increase over 2% in
one year, and

For those municipalities that are unfunded, changes in the unfunded actuarial liability after
June 30, 1998 are to be funded over projected future salaries of active members, rather than
on a fixed funding scale.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the Town's total payroll was approximately $3,257,142 and the
Town’s contribution to the MERS was based on covered approximate payroll of $1,680,559 for general
employees, $1,567,842 for police and fire.

The total contribution made to MERS during fiscal year 2009 amounted to $888,048 of which
$609,442 was made by the Town and $245,547 was made by employees. These employee contributions
represented 7.0% (Town), and 9.0% (Fire).

(CONTINUED)
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12.

PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2009, the Town's annual pension cost of $609,442 for MERS was equal to the Town's
required and actuarial contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2008
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method, and “Level Percentage Closed” amortization
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in that valuation include (a) 8.25% annual percent rate of
return on investments, compounded annually; (b) projected annual salary increases of 4.5% to 9.0% (5.00%
to 15.50% for Police and Fire), compounded annually; (c) mortality rates based on the 1994 group annuity
mortality table; (d) a retirement age of 65 for general employees and 60 for police and fire personnel, or
completion of service requirement, if later. For police and fire departments electing the 20 year service plan
with unreduced 15% of all disabilities are considered occupational for general employees and 50% of
disabilities are considered occupational for police and firemen; (f) 3% cost of living adjustment, not
compounded, beginning January 1 following a participant's retirement; (g) the actuarial value of assets
spreads investment gains and losses relative to the assumed return of 8%, over a three year period; (h)
unknown employee characteristics are estimated using a bond-type averaging method, and; (i) inflation rate
of 3.756%. Due to large fluctuations in contribution rates, the Retirement Board adopted a procedure which
allows an employer the option of paying a contribution rate equal to the previous year’s rate plus the cost of
any benefit improvements. The existing funding excess in 1999 is being amortized over the remainder of a 25
year period which commenced on the date the Town joined the System. The amortization period is open.
Subsequent divergence from actuarial assumptions will be amortized over the projected future salaries of
active members.

The Town’s fiscal 2008 required contribution to the State PERS represents 100% of the total current-
year actuarially determined contribution requirements for all employers covered by the pension plan.

Trend Information

Three-year trend information for the Town of Warren is presented below:

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage of Net Pension
Funding Pension Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obiligation
6/30/07 $519,085 100% $0
6/30/08 $594,312 100% $0
6/30/09 $609,442 100% $0

Ten-year historical trend information is presented in the fiscal 2008 State of Rhode Island and
Providence Plantations Employees’ Retirement System annual financial report. This information is useful in
assessing the pension plan’s accumulation of sufficient assets to pay pension benefits as they become due.
Related Party Investments

The assets of the MERS are held in the custody of the State Treasurer as an undivided single fund
and the system is administered by the State Retirement Board.

(CONTINUED)
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12.

PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Required Supplementary Information

The required supplementary information which follows the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding progress
of the General Municipal Employees’ Pension Plan with a valuation date of June 30, 2008 which is the most
recent report available from the State who administers this plan.

- Actuarial value of assets - $12,291,025

- Actuarial accrued liability - $17,061,933

- Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) - $4,770,908
- Funded Ratio — 72.04%

- Annual covered payroll - $3,094,800

- UAAL as percentage of payroll — 154.16%

(CONCLUDED)
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TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2009

Town of Warren, Rhode Island

Schedule of funding Progress for the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroli
6/30/2006 $ 10,130,235 $ 14,990,874 $ (4,860,639) 67.58% $ 2,767,079 -175.66%
6/30/2007 $ 10,492,717 $ 15,669,682 $ (5,176,965) 66.96% $ 2,737,818 -189.09%
6/30/2008 $ 12,291,025 $ 17,061,933 $ (4,770,908) 72.04% $ 3,094,800 -154.16%
(1) The actuarial Valuation Dates are presented for the most recent years of available information provided
by the State of Rhode Island.
Schedule of funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits.
Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date (1) Assets (AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroil
7/1/20086 N/A $ 3,018,423 $ 3,018,423 N/A 3 - 0.00%
7/1/2007 $ 700,000 $ 3,018,423 $ 2,318,423 23.19% $ 3,019,466 76.78%
(CONCLUDED)
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Budgetary To GAAP Basis Reconciliation

The following reconciliation summarizes the difference between budgetary and GAAP basis
accounting principles for the year ended June 30, 2009:

General Fund
Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other

uses Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) $ 1,902,192
Decrease reserve for encumbrances 985,443
Use of accumulated fund balance (5,123,489)

Excess of revenues and other sources under expenditures and other
uses (GAAP) $ (2,235,854)
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Town of Warren, Rhode Island

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Continuing Originally Final Actual Continuing Under
Appropriation Adopted Approved (Budgetary Appropriation Over
June 30, 2008 Budget Budget Basis) June 30, 2009 {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
General property taxes $ - $ 19,456,489 $ 19,456,489 $ 19,451,101 $ - $ (5,388)
Interest and investment income 225,000 225,000 301,197 76,197
Licenses, fees, permits and fines 760,255 760,255 818,925 58,670
Sewer use fees 62,500 62,500 68,754 6,254
Intergovernmental revenues 1,991,683 1,991,683 1,756,079 (235,604)
Other revenues 90,637 90,637 121,172 30,535
Total Revenues - 22,586,564 22,586,564 22,517,228 - (69,336)
EXPENDITURES:
Current-
General government 3,302,078 3,302,078 3,087,401 214,677
Town Offices 845,332 845,332 794,776 50,556
Financial administration 224,661 224,661 210,793 13,868
Public safety 1,948,039 1,948,039 2,063,636 (115,597)
Fire safety 438,353 438,353 418,627 19,726
Waste water treatment 1,158,865 1,158,865 1,139,301 19,564
Public works 1,762,724 1,762,724 1,667,864 94,860
Grants and contributions 298,600 298,600 298,293 307
Education 11,036,577 11,036,577 11,036,577 -
Debt service 1,521,335 1,521,335 1,814,164 (292,829)
Costs of collection 50,000 50,000 30,581 19,419
Capital and special appropriations 2,401,857 2,721,632 5,123,489 2,671,778 2,451,711 -
Total Expenditures 2,401,857 25,308,196 27,710,053 25,233,791 2,451,711 24,551
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (2,401,857) (2,721,632) (5,123,489) (2,716,563) (2,451,711) (44,785)
Other financing sources/(uses):
Transfers in/(out) - (504,734) (504,734)
Transfer from fund balance 2,401,857 2,721,632 5,123,489 5,123,489 -
Total Other financing sources/(uses) 2,401,857 2,721,632 5,123,489 4,618,755 - (504,734)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures
and other uses $ - $ - $ - 1,902,192 $ (2451,711) $ (549,519)

Reconciliation to Exhibit B-2:

plus: increase in reserve for encumbrances 985,443
less: Reappropriation of Fund Balance (5,123,489)
Excess of revenues and other sources over

expenditures and other uses, GAAP Basis (2,235,854)
less: increase in reserves and designations (538,210)
Net decrease in Unreserved Fund Balance $ (2,774,064) (2,774,064)
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Other Supplementary Information




Non-major Governmental Funds:

Enterprise Zone—accounts for activity of the regional
Enterprise Zone coordinator and related economic de-
velopment initiatives.

Senior Center—accounts for revenues and expendi-
tures related to activities at the Senior Center.

Pump Out Station—accounts for revenue and expendi-
tures for Pump Out Station activities.

Police Phone Grant—accounts for revenues and expen-
ditures for phone usage by Police department.

Rescue Equipment—accounts for revenues and expen-
ditures dedicated to rescue equipment needs.

Gun Buy Back—accounts for revenues and expendi-
tures of periodic gun buy-back programs.

Accident Reconstruction Grant—accounts for grant
revenues and expenditures for reconstruction expendi-
tures due to accidents.




Non-major Governmental Funds:

Recycling Grant—accounts for grant monies and expen-
ditures related to recycling activities.

Historical Street Signs—accounts for revenue and ex-
penditures relating to restoration and replacement of
street signs.

ACO Donations—accounts for donations for ACO activi-
ties.

Children’s Crusade—accounts for revenues and expen-
ditures related to Children’s Crusade program.

Cops that Care—accounts for revenues and
expenditures related to activities for Cops that Care
program.

Social Services Donations— accounts for donations to
be used for various social service activities.

Warren Beautification Donation - accounts for activity
related to the Beautification Donation Program.




Non-major Governmental Funds:

Cops Technology-accounts for revenue and expenditures
related to technology used by Public safety.

Town Beach Stormwater—accounts for revenue and ex-
penditures related to control of beach stormwater.

Homestead Park Fund - Grant funds for the Homestead
playground equipment.

Revaluation Fund—accounts for expenditures relating to
revaluation activities.

Animal Spading—accounts for revenue and expenditures
relating to the spading of local animals within the Town to
minimize stray animal population.

Community Development Block Grant and CDBG Loan
Repayment—account for revenues and expenditures re-
lated to federally funded Community Development Block
Grant programs.

Police Bike Patrol - Senate grant funds to patrol the bike
path.




Non-major Governmental Funds:

AFIS Live Scan Fed Grant—accounts for revenue and
expenditures relating to the AFIS Live Scan Fed Grant.

RI State Byrnes Justice Grant—accounts for revenue and
expenditures relating to State funded monies to be used
as stated in grant agreement.

Memorial Tree Fund—accounts for expenditures relating
to Memorial Tree.

Sewer Project—EPA-accounts for activity related to
Sewer Project .

Transient Dock Grant—accounts for revenue and expen-
ditures relating to the Transient Dock Grant.

Summer Concerts - accounts for activity related to the
Summer Concerts Program.

Fire Department Reserve—accounts for accumulation of
funds for fire department capital equipment purchases.




Non-major Governmental Funds:

Jamiel’'s Park Chafee and Jamiel's Park Grant—
accounts for revenue and expenditures related to
Jamiel’s Company grants.

Homeland Security - accounts for activity related to the
Homeland Security Program.

Substance Abuse—accounts for State grant funding of
Substance Abuse Prevention Program.

Fire Inspections—accounts for revenue and expendi-
tures for periodic fire inspections.

Fire State Med Plans—accounts for revenue and expen-
ditures relating to medical plans.

Police Forfeiture—accounts for revenue and expendi-
tures related to asset forfeitures resulting from police in-
vestigations.




Non-major Governmental Funds:

Industrial Pretreatment-accounts for activity related to
industrial pretreatment initiative.

Veterans Honor Roll—accounts for revenues and ex-
penditures for the construction and maintenance of
Honor Roll monument.

Government Center—accounts for activity related to op-
eration of Government Center.

Pagers and Radios—accounts for Fire Department ra-
dio technology expenditures.

Narcotics —accounts for revenues and expenditures of
police participation with Narcotics Strike Force.

Employee Charity Fund - accounts for employees pay
for Friday Casual Day participation.

RI Clean Water 05—relates to monies received by the
Rhode Island Clean Water Financing Agency to be used
towards payment of capital expenditures under financ-
ing agreement.




Non-major Governmental Funds:

Town Trust—accounts for revenues and expenditures of
Town Trust.

Police Trust - accounts for revenues and expenditures
of Police Trust, dedicated to public safety needs.

Sara B. Burtis-accounts for revenue and expenditures
of Sara B. Burtis Trust.
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Private-purpose Trust Funds

These trust funds account for gifts and be-
quests restricted as to use for the benefit of parties
outside of the Town, and can not be used at the
Town’s discretion or to support the Town'’s general
operations. Certain of these trusts are for the
benefit of local educational organizations, social
benefit groups, and other private parties.
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Agency Funds

These funds account for assets held on behalf
of others on a temporary basis.

Unclaimed Estates in Probate Court — accounts for
monies unclaimed as a result of court decisions.

Road Duty—accounts for monies received for po-
lice off-duty assignments and resulting disburse-
ment.

Performance Bonds—accounts for monies held by
Town while contractors perform expected duties.




TOWN OF WARREN, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabllities

Unclaimed Estates in Probate Court

ASSET
Cash

LIABILITY
Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Road Duty

ASSET

Cash

Accounts receivable
Total Assets

LIABILITY

Accrued Payroll

Deposits Held in Custody for Others
Total Liabilities

Performance Bonds

ASSET
Cash

LIABILITY
Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Totals

ASSET

Cash

Accounts receivable
Total assets

LIABILITY

Accrued payroll

Deposits Held in Custody for Others
Total Liabilities

Agency Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2009
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
- $ 6,684 $ 6,684
: 6,684 6,684
(2,736) 124,009 122,568 (1,295)
2,736 40,791 5472 38,055
- 164,800 128,040 36,760
- 13,128 - 13,128
- 115,534 91,902 23,632
- 128,662 91,902 36,760
44,840 9,635 9,586 44,889
44,840 49 44 889
42,104 140,328 132,154 50,278
2,736 40,791 5472 38,055
44 840 181,119 137,626 88,333
- 13,128 - 13,128
44 840 122,267 91,902 75,205
44 840 $ 135,395 $ 91,902 $ 88,333
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Statistical Section

This part of the Town’s comprehensive annual financial re-
port presents information to supplement and provide multi-year
trend information to enable readers to gain a better understand-
ing of the Town'’s financial health.

Financial trends: Schedules 1 through 4 contain trend information
to help the reader understand changes in financial performance
over time.

Revenue capacity: Schedules 5 through 7 contain information to
help the reader assess the factors affecting the Town'’s ability to
generate its property taxes.

Debt capacity: Schedules 8 through 11 contain information to
help the reader assess the affordability of the Town’s current lev-
els of outstanding debt and the Town’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic_information: Schedules 12 and 13 contain demo-
graphic information to help the reader understand the environ-
ment in which the Town'’s financial activities take place.

Operating information: Schedules 14 through 16 contain informa-
tion about the Town'’s operations and resources.
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Schedule 6
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

2009 2000
Percentage Percentage
Taxable of Total Taxable of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value Rank Values Value Rank Values

TN Realty, LLC $ 9,057,800 1 0.62% $ -
GNN Il 7,491,500 2 0.52%
MMF Realty, LLC 7,195,100 3 0.50%
National Grid 6,548,471 4 0.45% 8,300,830 1 1.38%
Ocean State Plaza, Inc. 5,873,600 5 0.40% 3,908,440 3 0.65%
Narragansett Electric 4,896,300 6 0.34% 1,806,620 10 0.30%
Blount Seafood Corp 4,805,100 7 0.33%
Genesis Health care 4,218,700 8 0.29%
Evelyn Associates 4,802,300 9 0.33%
Clark, Stephen and Kim 3,533,500 10 0.24%
TPI Composits 6,505,820 2 1.08%
Winthrop Associates 3,738,340 4 0.62%
Desilets Nursing Home 2,332,920 5 0.39%
Baywood Investments 2,168,770 6 0.36%
Blount Seafood Corp 2,040,280 7 0.34%
Woloohojian 2,174,530 8 0.36%
Old Brick Property Inc 1,861,370 9 0.31%
Total $ 49,364,571 3.40% $ 34,837,920 5.78%
Town's Total Taxable Assessed Value $ 1,451,129,015 $ 602,346,119

Source: Town of Warren Tax Assessor
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Schedule 7
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Taxes Collected within the

Year. Levied Fiscal Year of Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Ended for the Percentage in Following Percentage
June Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2000 $ 13,135,791 $ 12,699,875 9668% $ 358,201 $ 13,058,076 99.41%

2001 13,956,972 13,519,039 96.86% 206,647 13,725,686 98.34%
2002 13,986,313 13,612,453 97.33% 306,393 13,918,846 99.52%
2003 15,118,703 14,683,976 97.12% 416,521 15,100,497 99.88%
2004 15,845,201 15,539,206 98.07% 224,242 15,763,448 99.48%
2005 16,063,594 15,909,681 99.04% 135,304 16,044,985 99.88%
2006 17,177,949 17,016,389 99.06% 122,179 17,138,568 99.77%
2007 18,000,102 17,799,677 98.89% - 17,799,677 98.89%
2008 18,580,184 18,435,371 99.22% 123,972 18,559,343 99.89%
2009 19,512,275 19,183,136 98.31% 130,783 19,313,919 98.98%
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IQWN OF WARREN. RHODE ISLAND

Schedule 8
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business-type

Activi
Transfer Net Bonded
Governmental Activities Station Debt as %
Fiscal General Capital General Total Percentage Net Bonded  of Taxable
Year Ended Obligation Lease Obligation Primary of Personal Debt per Assessed
June Bonds Obligations Bonds Government Income * Capita * Value
2000 $ 3,746,000 $ - $ 40,327 $ 3,786,327 0.96% 333 0.63%
2001 3,464,700 - 89,279 3,653,979 1.06% 311 0.59%
2002 7,394,700 - 101,454 7,496,154 0.52% 655 1.24%
2003 8,098,700 51,085 67,637 8,217,422 0.49% 721 1.35%
2004 7,022,072 279,929 33,818 7,335,819 0.57% 644 1.19%
2005 7,760,653 211,613 - 7,972,266  Not Available 704 0.75%
2006 9,045,195 194,857 - 9,240,052  Not Available 816 0.86%
2007 9,659,276 94,363 - 9,753,639  Not Available 871 0.89%
2008 12,570,131 - - 12,570,131  Not Available 1,107 0.87%
2009 11,203,692 - - 11,203,692  Not Available 986 0.77%

Notes:
Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
* See Schedule 12 for personal income and population data used to calculate these ratios.
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Schedule 9

Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business-type

Activity
Transfer Percentage
Governmental Activities Station of Actual General
Fiscal General Capital General Total Value of Obligation
Year Ended Obligation Lease Obligation Primary Taxable Debt per
June Bonds Obligations Bonds Government Property * Capita **
2000 $ 3746000 9 - $ 40327 § 3,786,327 0.60% 333
2001 3,464,700 - 89,279 3,553,979 0.55% 311
2002 7,394,700 - 101,454 7,496,154 1.17% 655
2003 8,098,700 51,085 67,637 8,217,422 1.27% 721
2004 7,022,072 279,929 33,818 7,335,819 1.11% 644
2005 7,760,653 211,613 - 7,972,266 0.71% 704
2006 9,045,195 194,857 - 9,240,052 0.81% 816
2007 9,659,276 94,363 - 9,763,639 0.84% 871
2008 12,570,131 - - 12,570,131 0.82% 1,107
2009 11,203,692 - - 11,203,692 0.73% 986
Notes:

Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
The Town of Warren has no overlapping debt nor does it collect taxes for any other entity.

* See Schedule 5 for property value data.

** Population data can be found in Schedule 12.
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Schedule 11
Pledged Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

The Town of Warren does not have any pledged revenue coverage.
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Schedule 12
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Per
Fiscal Capita
Year Ended it Personal School Unemployment
June Population Income * Enroliment ** Rate ***
2000 11,376 $ 36,287 3,916 4.2%
2001 11,423 37,766 3,808 4.2%
2002 11,447 38,628 3,810 4.9%
2003 11,401 40,117 3,824 51%
2004 11,391 41,728 3,688 5.3%
2005 11,328 Not Available 3,580 5.0%
2006 11,328 Not Available 3,627 5.9%
2007 11,192 Not Available 3,503 5.0%
2008 11,360 43,428 3,460 6.7%
2009 11,360 41,368 3,449 11.70%
* Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Economic Information
System. The Town's population is 21.5% of the County.
** Source: Bristol-Warren Regional Schoo! District
*** Source: R! Department of Labor & Training
¥+ Source: State Data (estimates)
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Internal Control and
Compliance Section




&’ Braver

Accountants & Advisors

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Town Council
Town of Warren, Rhode Island

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Warren, Rhode Island as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise
The Town of Warren’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 23,
2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Warren's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town
of Warren, Rhode Island’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Warren's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the Town of Warren, Rhode Island’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is
more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Town of Warren, Rhode Island’s financial

statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Town of Warren,
Rhode Island’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination or significant deficiencies that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will be prevented or
detected by the Town of Warren, Rhode Island’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Warren'’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Town Council, management, federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Brave  PC

Providence, Rhode Island
January 23, 2010
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